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Moments In 

Ministry 

Hightstown Regional 

Catechetical Center in 

New Jersey 

February 11, 1947 – Mother Loretto Reynolds wrote to the Director of the Society for the Propagation of the 

Faith in Trenton, NJ, inquiring about the possibility of the OLMs establishing a mission in the Diocese of 

Trenton.  

February 18, 1947 – The Diocesan Director, Father Emmett Monahan, informed Mother Loretto that the Bishop 

of Trenton, the Most Rev. William Griffin, was interested in her proposal and suggested that she visit Trenton to 

discuss the particulars with him. During the visit Bishop Griffin proposed that the OLMs staff the Regional 

Catechetical Center in Hightstown, NJ. 

March 5, 1947 - Mother Loretto informed Bishop Griffin that the OLM Council and the Bishop of Charleston, 

Most Rev. Emmet Walsh, approved the offer, and, that “God willing, we shall be with you in Hightstown next 

September.” 

September 8, 1947 –Sisters Ignatia Gavaghan, Sr. Michael Joseph Niggel, Sr. M. Agatha Sloan, and Sr. Marie 

Cecilia Ferro arrived in Trenton. They lived with the Sisters of St. Francis at St. Michael’s Children’s Home in 

Hopewell, NJ, until the house being renovated for them in Hightstown was ready.  

 

 
 

Mother Loretto, Bishop Griffin, Sr. Ignatia, Sr. Michael Joseph, Sr. Mary Charles, Sr. Agatha, Sr. Marie Cecilia 
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January 11, 1948 - Bishop Griffin dedicated the Hightstown Regional Catechetical Center Convent on Franklin 

Street opposite St. Anthony’s Church. The Reverend Louis F. Cogan, pastor of St. Anthony’s Church, 

welcomed the Sisters to their new home.  

October 3, 1948 - The Church of Our Lady of Mercy, Englishtown, NJ, named for the OLMs, was formally 

dedicated by Bishop William Griffin. 

 

 

 

September 9, 1947 - Bishop Griffin informed Mother Loretto that the sisters had arrived safely and had a car 

ready for them on arrival. With Sr. Michael Joseph as driver they visited the Sisters in the Regional convents of 

Flemington, South River and Washington to get an idea of local conditions and their work.  Agatha and Marie 

Cecilia learned to drive in Hightstown.   

 

October 6, 1947- OLMs officially began their 

work in the Hightstown Center. In the mornings 

the sisters visited homes and prepared a census 

of the Catholic families in the area. In the 

afternoons they gave religious instruction to the 

Catholic children who attended public schools 

in Windsor, Cranbury, Roosevelt, Englishtown, 

Perrineville and Hightstown.  

 
 
October 21, 1947- Bishop Griffin 

complimented Sr. Ignatia and Sisters on their 

work to date.  Their discovery of 159 Catholic 

families in Englishtown encouraged the Diocese 

to go ahead with plans to build a Church there.  

 

Sisters Ignatia, Agatha, Michael Joseph and Marie Cecilia with their 1947 Dodge 

d 

Bishop Griffin with Sister Ignatia 
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Map draw by Sisters showing their destinations 

Letter from Sr. Ignatia to unknown OLM 
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Rev. Louis F. Cogan, Pastor of St. Anthony’s Church 
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Hightstown Regional Catechetical Center Convent on Franklin Street 

October 23, 1949 - The OLMs participated in the Tenth Annual Mission Sunday Celebration held in St. Mary’s 

Cathedral, Trenton, NJ. Two little girls dressed in the OLM habit joined the procession of school children 

representing the religious communities of men and women working in the Diocese.  
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Mission Sunday Children dressed in habits of religious orders. Can you find the OLMs? 

 
1950 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

January 1, 1950 - Bishop William Griffin, Bishop of 

Trenton, died. His successor, the Most Reverend George W. 

Ahr, was installed the seventh Bishop of the Diocese of 

Trenton, on March 20, 1950. 

November 28, 1950 - At the invitation of Bishop Ahr, 

Diocesan Catechists gathered at the Cathedral High School 

Auditorium, Trenton. Sister Ignatia Gavaghan chaired a 

session entitled “Parent Catechist Organization”. Sister 

Marie Cecilia represented Hightstown on a panel entitled 

“Some principles for the Successful Teaching of Religion.” 

 

  

Bishop Ahr 
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February 24, 1955 - Bishop Ahr presented a new proposal. He 

suggested that the Victory Noll Sisters who were staffing a 

Catechetical Center in Middlesex and whose Constitutions did not 

permit them to teach school, take over the Hightstown Catechetical 

Center and the OLMs transfer to Middlesex to staff the new school.  

March 1, 1955 - Mother Mary Bernard wrote the Bishop that she was 

open to his proposal but needed more information before accepting it. 

May 18 1955 - Bishop Ahr formally requested the OLMs be 

transferred from Hightstown to Our Lady of Mount Virgin Parish, 

Middlesex, NJ, to staff the parochial school to open in September 

1955.  

June 16, 1955 - Mother Mary Bernard informed Bishop Ahr that the 

OLM General Council approved the withdrawal of the OLMs from 

Hightstown and the opening of the parish school in September 1955. 

She also noted that Sister M. Roberta Bridgeman was appointed Local 

Superior and Principal of the school. 

September 1955 - The transfer of the Communities was 

accomplished in August. We do not know the exact date of the OLM 

withdrawal from Hightstown. However, the Sisters arrived in 

Middlesex in time for the opening of the OLMV parish school in 

September.  

 

 
 

June 16, 1952 - Sister Mary Bernard Campbell was elected Mother General replacing Mother M. Loretto 

Reynolds whose term had expired.  

August 1953 - Sister M. Gerald O’Brien was appointed Local Superior of the Hightstown Mission replacing 

Sister M. Ignatia Gavaghan whose term had expired. Sister M. Paul Hogan and Sister M. Andrew Clutterbuck 

were also assigned to Hightstown.  

February 26 1954 - Bishop Ahr of Trenton wrote to Mother M. Bernard Campbell inviting the OLMs to 

provide teachers for a new parish school in Middlesex, His letter noted “the splendid work accomplished by 

your Sisters in the Catechetical Center at Hightstown 

March 8, 1954 - Mother M. Bernard replied that the Community was not able to accept the Bishop’s invitation 

due to a lack of personnel. However, she held out hope that the situation might change in two years which 

would enable the OLMs to consider a similar proposal favorably.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

March 1979 - In preparation for the celebration of the 150th 

anniversary of the founding of the Community Sister Jean Marie 

O’Shea, OLM, met with members of the New Jersey Planning 

Committee.  Mrs. Angela French of Englishtown, NJ, a member of the 

Committee, recalled that the OLMs taught catechism in her home 

thirty-two years earlier.  Sr. Jean Marie, who grew up and met the 

OLMs there, entered the Community in 1951. She was an active 

member of the Community until her death in 2012.   
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Autumn Prayer 
God of all seasons, we thank you for Autumn. 

We thank you 
for the touch of coolness in the air that gives 

us a new burst of energy, 
for the coloring of trees that shows the 
creativity of the Divine Artist, 

for the falling leaves that reveal the strength 
of the branches, 

for the hues of fields that bring peace to our 
souls, 
for the smiles on pumpkins that bring joy to 

children, 
for the fall harvest which that brings us 

gratitude for the bounty of our land, 
for this change of seasons that reveals the 
circle of life.  

God of all seasons, as you transform the 
earth, transform us by your Spirit. 

Amen 
- Doug Leonhardt, S.J. 

 

 

 

 

 


